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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. '

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

()

(i)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 17 a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
2” to this report;
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(8) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i

i.

ii.

ii.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAIFj

per Chirag Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 121648
UDIN: 22121648AXFVZA4446
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: September 30, 2022

Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and
no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(¢) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in aggregate
from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of current
assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(¢) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) and
(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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(iv)
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight
delay in case of Income tax (tax deducted at source) (upto 34 days) and Goods and service tax (upto 43
days). According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed
by us, undisputed dues in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory
dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable, are as follows:

Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six Months

Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues Amount Period to which the
in INR lakhs amount relates
Labour welfare fund Act, 1965 Labour welfare fund 50.16 | FY 2012-13 to FY
2018-19
The Employees’ Provident Funds | Provident fund 28.31 | FY 2007-08 to FY
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 2011-12
1952 *

* excludes interest

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.
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(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

(¢) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to report
on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
Joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177
of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system
under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report under
clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.
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(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by ReserVe Bank
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not incurred
cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(2) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred
to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to
sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 28A to the financial
statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter
has been disclosed in note 28A to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Chirag Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 121648
UDIN: 22121648AXFVZA4446
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: September 30, 2022
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements of Avon
Solutions & Logistics Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Avon Solutions
& Logistics Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI F?r Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

e i

per Chirag Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 121648
UDIN: 22121648 AXFVZA4446
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: September 30, 2022




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

. o Asar As at
Faxtienlacy Netes  31.Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

(a) Property plant and equipment 3 3122 20,59
(b) Intangible assets 3A 8.80 520
(c) Right-ot-use assets 4 2.86 19.93
(d) Financial assets
(1) Bank balances other than cash and casii equivalents 12 1,759.16 501.82
(1) Orther financial assets 3 2339 17.21
(e) Other non-current assets 7 357 4.07
(f) Deferred tax asset (Net) 9 137.56 212.14
(g) Income tax asset (Net) 10 130.99 130 99
2.197.55 912.38
Current Assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 11 1,496.66 1,145.61
(11) Cash and cash equivalenis ¥2 12.21 61.67
(1ii) Other financial assets e §81.63 1.269.51
(b) Other current assets 8 4548 29.88
2.435.98 2,506.67
Toral Assets 4,033,583 3,419.05
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(&) Equity share capital i3 24.85 2885
(b) Cther equity 14 2,743.97 1.76R.37
Total Equity 2.768.82 1.797.22
Non-carrent lialilities
(a) Financial habilities
(1) Lease Habilities 4 - 3.38
(k) Provisions 15 25653 22345
256.53 226.83
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Habilities
(i) Borrowings 17 108.78 -
(i) Lease liabilities 4 4.15 19.11
(i1i) Trade payables 18

Total outstanding dues of micro, small arnd medium 2.61 0.45

enterprises

Total outstanding dues of craditurs other than micia, 3410 267.87

small and medium enterprises

(tv) Other cur-ent financial iiabilities 19 oy ! 606.57

(b) Provisions 16 128,68 154.02

() Other current liabiiities 20 138.67 147.19

(d) Liabilities for cusrent tax (net) 21 13844 24579

1,608.18 1,395.00

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABLITIES 4.633.53 3,419.05
Summary of significent accounting policies 2
The accompanying intes {orm an invegral part of the Financial

Statements 3to 41

As per oul report of even date

For S.R. Batlibo! & Associates LLYP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Numuver: 151049W/E300004

per Chirag Shah
Partner
Membership Mo, 121648

Place: Chennai
Date © Sepicbar 36, 2022

For and un behaif of Board of Directors

Avon Solutions & }ogistics Private Linited

P D Ii:;%:
Managing Director
DIN 01919643

=\

L B Jayaram
Director
DIN 01603927




Avon Solutions & Logisties Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Mists Year Ended Year Ended

; March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 22 7,754.54 5,714.03
Other income 23 4.82 3.49
Finance income 24 44.25 19.43
Total Income 7,803.61 5,736.95
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 25 2,345.60 2,252.23
Finance costs 26 4.02 8.88
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 33.02 30.61
Other expenses 28 3,350.04 2.099.67
Total Expense 5,732.68 4,391.39
Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,070.93 1,345.56
Tax Expenses:

Current tax 30 557.91 383.19

Tax related to earlier years 22.85 -
Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax (Net) 30 (25.25) (40.82)
Income tax expense 555.51 342.37
Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,515.42 1,003.19
Other Comprehensive Income:

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit obligations (net) (0.68) (93.98)
Income tax effect 0.17 23.65

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (0.51) (70.33)
Total comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year, net of tax 1,514.91 932.86

Earnings per equity share

Basic & diluted earnings per equity share (Amount in %) 29 5,467.62 3,477.87
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
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As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 01049W/E300004
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Partner
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Date : September 30, 2022
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

et Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit before tax 2,070.93 1,345.56
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation/ amortization 33.02 30.61
Interest expenses 4.02 8.88
Interest income (44.25) (19.43)
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 19.79 27.36
[.oss on sale of asset 0.08 8.30
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 2,083.59 1,401.28
Movements in working capital :
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (370.84) (450.97)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 384.41 (1,109.06)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 7533 170.86
Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities and provisions 189.00 286.58
Cash generated from /(used in) operations 2,361.49 298.69
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) (692.11) (133.40)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities A 1,669.38 165.29
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (29.85) (15.80)
Proceeds from sale of asscts - 10.66
Interest income 26.44 14.30
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months) (net) (1.257.31) (23.68)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities B (1,260.72) (14.52)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from / Repayment of short-term borrowings (Net) 108.78 (93.20)
Interest paid (4.02) (8.88)
Buy-back of equity shares (441.40) -
Tax on buy-back of equity shares (101.90) -
Payment of principal portion of iease liabilities (19.58) (27.49)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities C (458.12) (129.57)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C (49.46) 21.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (see below) 61.67 40.48
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (see below) 12.21 61.67
Components of Cash and cash equivalent:
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 12.14 61.62
Cash in hand 0.07 0.05
12.21 61.67
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 3tod44

As per our report of even date

For S R Batliboi & Associates LL.P

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regjstration no. 101049W/E300004
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Managing Director
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lukhs of Indian Rupees uniess otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital

Particulars No. of shares Amount
Balance as on 31st March 2020 0.29 28.85
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Balance as on 31st March 2021 0.29 28.85
Less: Buyback of equity shares (0.04) (4.00)
Balance as on 31st March 2022 0.25 24.85

(b) Other 2quity

Particulars Retained Earnings| Generai reserve Secur‘mes C?p“al Total

Premium redemption reserve

As at March 31, 2020 566.70 172.68 96.13 - 835.51
Profit for the year 1,003.19 - - - 1,003.19
Transfer to reserve (93.29) 93.49 - - -
Other Comprehensive Income (70.33) - - - (70.33)

As at March 31, 2021 1,405.27 265.97 96.13 - 1,768.37
Profit for the year 1515.41 - - 1,515.41
Other Comprehensive Income (0.51) - - - (0.51)
Buyback of cquity shares {vefer note 13) (345.27) (96.13) 4.00 (437.40)
Incone tax on buyback of equutv shares (refer note 13) (101.90) - - - (i101.90)

As at March 3i, 2022 2,474.00 265.97 - 4.00 2,743.98

Surtmary of significant acceunting policies 2
The accompany:ing notes form an integral pait of ihe Financial Statemens 344
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the finaucial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakns of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

2

1 Corporate Information
Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated on Deceraber 2. 2002 The Company is a private company domiciled in India and 1s
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable i India. The registered otfice of the company is Iocated at Deepak Complex, 3rd Floor, No. I, Bharathi
Nagar 4th street, T Nagar.Chennai - 600017 , Chennai. The Company 1s prinarily inte rendering integrated maiicoom management solutions across diverse industries such as
banking, insurance. consultancy, technology and manufacturing. The Company is engaged in three types of services - Mailroom operations, mail logistics and pickup & delivery
services The Company is a subsidiary of Updater Services Private Limuted.

e

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepaied in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act.
20173 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Comparntes Act. 2013.

These financial statements have been prepared on historicai cost convention and on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explamned in the accounting policies below The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company's
functional currency and ail values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00.000), except when otherwise stated

The financral statements have been prepared on a histortcal cost basis, except for the following:
a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies: and
by Defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value.

Historical cost 1s generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Curreni versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset 1s treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or consumed in normal operating cycle

« Held primarily for the purpose of trading

xpected 1o be realised within twelve months atter the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a iability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Al other assets are classitied as non-current

A ligoi'ity 15 current when:

« it is expected to be settled i1 normal operating cycle

o it is lield primanly 1or the purpose of trading

» ltis due 1o be s ettied withun twelve months after the report.ng period, or

« There 15 no uncondit.onal right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least tweive months after the reporting perod
The Company classities ail other i:abifities as non-surrent

Deferred tax assets and hizbifities are classified as non-cuvrent assets and habilities

Vhe operating cycle 15 the time beiween the acquisition <f assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents Thz Company has igentified twetve menths as
its aperating cycle

Property. plant and eqaipment
Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accunulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of
brnging the asser to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Fur aepreciation purposes, the Company identifies and determines cost of asset significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of
the life of the principal asset and depreciates them separately based on the:r spectfic useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised 1n the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satistied and the same is depreciated based on their specific useful lives. All other
expenses on existing property, plant ana equipment, mcluding day-wo-day repair and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period
during which such expenses are incurred

Antem of property. piant and equipnient and any significant part initially recognised 1s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefirs are expected from its
use or disposal. Gams or losses ansing from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and are recogrized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset 1s derecognized
| g
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amownis are in lakhs of Indian Rupees uniess othenvise stated)

Depreciation

The Company. based on technical assessment made by experts and management estimates, depreciates certain items of property, plant and equipment over estimated useful
lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used

The Company has used the following years to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment.

Block of assets Useful life

$yeans

Syun

Veicie - Mator eycies 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

¢. Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Costs incurred towards purchase of software are depreciated using the straight-line method over a period of 3 years based on management’s estimate of useful lives of such
software, or over the license period of the software, whichever is shorter.

Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised

Asser Useful  Life L. Internally  gemerated  on
e . Amartisation method . g
Classification lVearsy acqaived

on 3 stagit-fne bas

cipured

d. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash tlows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation / amortization, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

e. Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because
it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Goods and service tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the
sovernment. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue
N
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Income from Mailroom services / Courier services

Mailroom services consist of in-house operations of mail room and mail delivery including inter-office mails. It involves MIS generation, cost management, vendor
management, inbound and outbound mail management and pre-processing of mails. Revenue from mailroom services are accounted as and when the related services are
rendered and is net of discounts and taxes.

Mail logistics / Courier services and pickup & delivery services refer to packing and delivery of goods/ articles. Revenue from such services are recognized as the related
services are rendered in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract/agreement with the customer.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into aceount the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate Interest income 1s included under the head
“Finance income™ in the statement of profit and loss

Contract balances

Comract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange tor goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to 2
customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional

Contract Assets (Unbilled revenue) represents revenue in excess of billing.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's nght to an amount of consideration that is unconditionai {i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is
due)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Uompany has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment 1s made or
the payment 1s due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract

f.  Financiai Instruments
A financial mstrument 1s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial hability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, n the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (reguiar way trades) are recognised on the trade date. t e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequnent measurement

For putposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets arz classitied in four categories

» Debt instruments at amortised cost

 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

« Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
« Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQC1}

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal atnount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the FIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised n the profit or loss. This category generally applies 1o trade
and other receivables For more information on receivables, refer to Note 11

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument’ 13 classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the followiny criteria are met:

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured mitially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exclange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised ir. OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt instrument
is reported as interest income using the EIR method The Company does not have any debt instrument as at FVTOCI

Debt instrument at FVTPL

3
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Avon Solutions & Logstics Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless othersise siated)

FVTPL s a residuai categorv for debt instruments. Any delt mstrument, which does not meet the criteria for catcgorization as at amntized cost 2r as FVTOCL is classified as
at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect 1o designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amertized cost or FVTOCT ciiteria, 2s at FVIPL. However, such election is allowed
only 1t doing so reduces or elimunates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred 15 as “ascounting mismateh’). The Corapany has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL

Debt instruments included wirnin tue FVTPL category are measured at fais value with all ehanges recognized in the P&L The Compary dees not have any debt instrument at
FVIPL

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the sash flows from the asset expire, or when 1t transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards ot ownership of the asset to another party. It the Company neither transiers not retains substantially alt the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset. the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantiallv all the risks ana rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset. the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received

On de-recognition of a financial asset in 1ts entirety. the difference between the asset's careying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in the Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of inancial assets
The Company appites expected credit loss modei for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Company foliows ‘simplitied approach’” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified appioach does not require the
Corapany to track changes in credit risk Rather, it recognises impairment loss zilowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting dute, right from its initial recogmtion

For recognition of nnpairmert loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a sigmficant increase in the credit rish
since initiai recognition. If eredit risk has not incraased significantly, 12-ronth ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increascd significantly.
litetime ECL 1s used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the mstrument improves such that there is no longes a sigmificart increase m credit risk since 1nitiai
recogmtion, then the entitv reverts to recogmsing tmpairment loss allowance based on 12-imonth ECL. ’

Livenme RCL are the eapecied credit losses resutung frora ali possibic aefault cvents over the expected life of a finuncial instrument. The 12-month ECL is 4 portion of the
nfetine OL whick results from default events that are possibie within 12 inonthe aiter the reporting date.

As a practical expedient, tae Compuny uses a prosision mainix fo determine nnpairment loss ailowance on perdfolio of tts tiade recenables. The proviston mairix is based en its
hestencally obseoved defauit rates over the expected life of the trade recen ables and 1s adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At evary reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are apdated and cnanges in the forward-looking estimaies are analysed

ECL impaitment loss alfowance (or reversal) recognized dwiing the period is recognized as expenses i the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head “other expenses’ in the P&L

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All tinanciai liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial habnities at amortized cost, net of directly atteibutatle transaction ensts
The Company’s financial liabilities mclude trade and other payables, bank overdrafts and statutory payables

Subsequent measurement

All financiat liabilities except devatives are subsequent!y measured ai amorused cos: using the cffeciivz inserest rate method

The effective interest method 1s a methoa of calcuiating the amortised cost of a financial hiabality and of ailocanng interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (inciuding uli fees and points paid or received that form an integral par: of the effective interest
rate. fransaction costs and other premiunis or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter pertod, 10 the net carrying amount
on 1niual tecognition

Derecognition

A financial liability 1 derecognised wher the obligaion under the liability is discharged or cancelied or expires. Wher an :xisting financial hability 1s replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the ter.ns of an existing liability are substantial'y modified, such an exchange o modification 1s treated as the derecogmtion
of the original liabikity and the recognition of a ne 4 liability. Tl.e ditference i the respective carrying amounts is recogiised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments .
Financial assets and financial hiabilities are-offser and the net amount 1s reported in tie Lalance sheet if there is a carrently enforceable legal right to offser the recognised
amounts and thece is an intepnion to seitle on & net basis, 10 realise the assets and settle the habilitics simultaneously

Leases
The Cornpany ascesses at contiact ince ption whether a contract is. ¢r contains, a lease Tha is. if tne contract convevs the 1ighl to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration

As a lessee
The Company applics a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shoit-erm jeases and icases of 'ow-value assets. The Company recognises iease
13 underlying assets,




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2022
(All amourits are in lakhs of Indian Rupzes videss otherwise stared)

i. Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date or the iease (i.<., the date ihe underlying asset 1s available for use). Right-of-use asseis are weasured at
cost, less any accumulated Gepreciation and impainment iosses. and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease abilities. The cost of right-of-use asscts includes the amount of’
lease liabilities recognised. niteal diect costs incurred, ang lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight hine basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as foliows:

Asset Classi Fstimated Useful Life !Years)

Building 1-3 years
Vehicle ars
Furnituie and {ittinas -2 years

If uwnership of the ieased assc transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase cption, depreciation is calculated using the
estunated usefu! lite of the asset

The right-of-use assets are uiso subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting poiicies in section (d) Impairment of noix-financial assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement dace of the lease, the Company recognises lease iiabilities measured at the present value of iease naymems to be made over the lease term. The lease
pavments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) iess any lease incentives receivable, variable iease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also inciude the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
{ompany and payments of penalties for tenminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option o terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on au index or a rate are recognised as expeases {uniess they are incurred to produce inventones) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the pavment
cecurs.

Ia calculating the present vaiuve of lease paviments. the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate impueit i the
tease is not readily determnable After the commencement Gate, the amount of lease liabilities 15 increasad to reflect the accreiion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
nade. In addition, the carrying amount of fease liabilities 1s remeasured 1f there is a modification, a change 1n the lease term, a change in the lease paymeras (e.g . chenges to
future payments tesulting fro.n a change 1n an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change ix: the asscssment of an option to purchase the underly ing asset

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans ard borrovings

hort-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recogattion exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i... those leases that have a lease term of 12 montas or
less from the commencement date ard do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low=value assets recognition exenption .o leases of office equipment tiat
are consicered t e low value. Leass payments on short-rerm leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a sttaighi-luie basis over the feass term.

As a tessor

Leases m which the Company does not transfer sabstantianly ali the sishs and rewards incidental to vwnership of an asset are classified 2s vperating leases. Rental mcome
13 Y, 2

arising it accourtsd for on a suaight-line tasis over the tease terms Initial direct costo incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating icase are added to the carrying

ameunt of the leasud usset aad recognisad aver the lease teiry on the same basis as vental income Lontingert rents are recognised as reverue in tae period in which they are

earned

Esnployee henefits

i. Defined Contribution Scheme

Provident I'und

Rutirement benetit in the ferm of providert fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution vayable to the provident fund

The Compary recognizes conitibution payable to the provident rund scheme as an expenditure, when an empioyee renders the reiated service. If the contribution payable tc the

scheme for service recerved bofore the balance shzet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payabie to the scheme 1s recognized as 2 inability afier deducting the

contribution alveady paid. If the contribution already pa:d exceeds the contribution due for services 1eceived before the balance sheet date, then cacess 1s recogmzed as an asset
to the 2xient thad the pre-paymens will fead {0, for example, 4 reduction in future payment or a cash refuné.

ii. Defined Benefit Schieine

Giratinty

Grawity fiability under the Payment of Gratwity Act, 1972 15 a defined benefit oplgation, The Plan vrovides paymeni io vested empleyees at retiremerx, death or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respeciive employee’s salary and e teaure of emiployment with the Company  The Company provides the grawuty benefit through
annual contnbunion to 2 fund managed vy the Life Insurance Corporation of India (1.1C). Under this scheme the settlement obligadon remains with the Company altbough the
LIC administers the sche:ne and determines the contribution premium cquired to be paid by the Company. The cust of providing benefits under this plan is determined oa the
basis of actuanal valuation at each year-=ad using the projected unit credit metand

Ke-measurements, compiising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, escluding amo-nts inciuded 1n n2t iterest on the net deiined benefit liability and the
return on plan assets (excluding amoums included in net imterest on the aet defined benefit liability), are recognised 1mriediately i the balance shest with a corcesponding debit

g

or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period n v.hich they occur.
Remeasurements are not veclassiiied 1o profit or loss in subsequent pericds
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iii. Other employment benefits

Compensated absence
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months. is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such fong-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to
the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional
right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date

Taxes on Income

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date n the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

« When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

« In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and written off to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recogmised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

\
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

k.

Foreign currencies
The financial statements of the Company is presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Initial Recogznition

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange 1ates prevailing on the date of the transaction or at the average rates that closely
approximate the rate at the date of the transaction

Conversion

Foreign currency moretary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items which are measured in terms of historical cost
denonunated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction, 2nd non-monetary items which are carried at fair value denominated in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting such monetary items of company at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year/period, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise. The gain or ioss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or oss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised m OCI or profit or loss, respectively)

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fait value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transuction hetween market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement 1s based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabtlity, assurming that market
participans act in their best economic interest.

A farr value measurement of a non-finaucial asset takes into ascount a matket participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset m its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in tfs Lighest and best use

The Company uses valuation techmques that are appropriate in the circums.ences and for which sufficient data are available tv measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable mputs and minimising the use of unobservabie inputs.

Ail assets and hiabilities for which fair value is incasured or disciosed in the financial statements are categonsed within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as foliows, based on
the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets tor identical assets or habilities
» Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpnt that 1s significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level mput that is sigmificant to the tair value measurement 1s unobservable

For assets and labilities that are recognised in the financiar statements on a 1scurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company . At each reporting date, the Company anaiyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major mputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other reievant documents. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes (Refer Note
34).

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks ot the asset or liability
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above (Refer Note 39).
Segment reporting

Based on mternal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker, sale of services 1s the only operating segment for the Company. The Company operates only in one
geographical segment, since its entire income is derived from services provided in India.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share i calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before OCI for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares
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0.

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Company has ¢ present obugation (legal or construcitve) as a result of a past event, 1t is probabic. that the Company will be required to settle
the oblisation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligaiion

The amount recognised as a provisioa s the besi estimate of the consideration required to settle present obligation at the end of reporting penied, taking inwo account the risk
and uncentainty surrounding the obligation Waen a provision is measured using the cash Tows estimated to settle the present obligation, 1ts carrying amount is the present
value of these cash flows (when tne effect of the time value of moaey is marerial). When some or al} of the economic berefits required te settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a recarvadle 15 recognised as an assef if it is sirtually certain ihat ieimbursement will be reccived and the amount of receivabie can be measured
sehably

Coniingent liabilities & Contingent Asseis

Contingent liabiiity is disclosed for.

{1* Possibie obligation which will be confiimed only by futuie events ot whoily within the control of the Company or

(i1} Present obiigations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to sctile the nbligation or a reliable estimate of the amoum
ot the ubligation cannot be made. Contigent assets are not recognised 1 the financial statements

Contingent assets are disclysed in tne Fiaancial Siacements by way of notes to acceunts when an inflow of economic bencfits is probaoie.

€ ash and cash eyuivalents
Cash and cash equivalents :n the balance sheet comprise of cash at banks and on fand and shert-ierm deposizs with an original maturity of thiee raonths or less. which are

subject 1 an insigimiicant sisk of changes in salue

Far the purpose of de stateraent of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalents consist ot cash and stort-term dej.osits, us detined above

Use vt estimates

The preparauon of the financiai stateraernts in conformity with ind A3 requiles management te make estimates, judgements and assumpticns. These estimates. judgements end
assumpt:ons affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets znd liabilities, the disclosuras of contingent assets and liabilities at the date ot the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates invoiving
complex and subjective judgements and the use of assumpuiens in these financial statements have been disclosed in Note 34. Accounting estimates could change fiom period w0
period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the
esumates. Changes n estimates are reflected ir: the financtal siatements 1n the period ir which changes are made and. if matenial. thewr effects are disclosr transfers have
occurred betwees: ievels in

Standards issued but not effective -

r¢ etivcave for amual pericas beg nuing on or afier Apiil 01, 2621, The Company has 10t
ctive

The Conpany appicd for the first-time cortain standards wnd amendments. which
zaelv agopiad any vther standard o1 amendment that has been issued but s ot yet er

(14 Conceptuat framework for fiuancial reporaag under Ind AS issuec by [CAT

The Frane vork 13 not 4 Standard and it does not override any specific tandard. Therefore.
Whle, the Framewark 15 pr
conststent wof ounmng polictes 1o areas thut are not covered iy a standand oo where thera 1s cheice of accounting poliey, £nd to assist all parties to underutand and mteiprat the
Standards.

L does net form part of a set of standards pronounced by the standard-setcers
ly mean: wr tne standacd-setier for tormulating the standards 1t has relevance to tie preparers in cetai situations such as to aevelop

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS .includes amendment of the footnote to the definition of an
equity nstrament m ind AS 102~ Share Based Fayments, {ootnote to be added for definition of iiability r.e. definition of liability is not revised on account of revision of
definitior in concepiual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets etc.

The MCA has notitied the Amendments t¢ ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide notification dated June 18, 2021, appiicable for annual perinds
beginniug on or after April 1, 2021, Accordingly, the Conceptual Framewori 1s applicable foi preparers for accounting perieds beginning i or after 1 Aprii 2021

amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

(i) Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions

MCA 1550ed an ainendiment 1o ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 to update the condition for Jesseas 10 appiy the reniet 1o 4 reduction in
leasc payments originally due on or before 30 Junie 2022 rrom 36 June 2021, The amenament applies to annual reporiing periods begmning on or after | Apni 2021, In case a
lessee has not vet approved the fiaancial statements for 1ssue betore the wsuaace of this amendment, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or
atter ! Apnil 2620

These amendments had no impact oa the financrat statements of he Cempany

1AS 28
! sueh thae the words “the higher of ar asset’s fair value less costs to se!l and its value it use™ e repiaced with “higher of an
¢ made in In¢ AS 105, Ind AS 15 and ind AS 28

(i1t} Amendment to ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and
The definitwon of * Recoverable amouat” is amendi
s valoe nuse” The consequential amendren

assel’s farr vaive less costs of disposal and

These amendments had no impact on the financial statemenis of the Conpany.




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the financial starements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All anornrs are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unles: otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equi and 3A. Intangible assets
Note 3A. Intangibles assets
Particulars Office equipments Computer'and (T Vehicies Total Computer Total
accessories fixtures software

Cost:*

At 31st March, 2020 25.24 17.21 24.81 10.60 77.86 13.41 13.41
Additions 412 1.72 5,07 1151 429 4.29
Disposals (10.21) (2.69) (11.89) {1C.60) (35.49) - -
Adjustments 2.60 3.14 - - 5.74 - -
At 31st March, 2021 21.65 19.38 18.59 - 59.62 17.69 17.69
Additions 309 15.50 4.78 - 23.37 6.50 6.50
Disposals (1.34) (1.51) (C.36) 3 (3.71) = =
At 31st March, 2022 23.40 33.37 22.51 - 79.28 24.19 24.19
Depreciation &
Amortisation

At 31st March, 2620 14.85 13.17 10.2i 10.60 48.83 11.22 11.22
Charge for the year 4.56 269 269 - 994 1.27 127
Disposals (675) (2.44) 16.08) (10.60) (2587 - -
Adjustments 2.60 314 - - 5.74] - -
At 31st March, 202t 15.25 16.56 6.82 - 38.64 12.49 12.49
Charge for the peiod 2.94 5.53 459 - 13.06 291 2.91
Disposals (1 26) (1.51) (0.80) (3 63) - -
At 31st March, 2022 16.92 20.58 10.55 - 48.07 15.39 15.39
Net Block

At 31 March. 2021 6.40 2.82 11.77 = 20.99] 5.20 5.20
At 31 March, 2022 6.48 12.79 11.96 - 31.22 8.80 8.80)

*On transition 1o Ind AS (1.e. 1 April 2017), the Company had elected 10 continue with the carrving value of all Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets measured as per the
previcus GAAP and use that carrying vatue as the deetaed cost of Property, plent and equipment and Intangible assets

4. Leases

The Company has lease contravs for building, vehicies and furniture and fittings used in its operations. Leases of butlding generally have lease terms between 1-3 years. vebicles have lease

terms of 5 years and [urniture and 1ittings have lease turms between 1-2 years. The Company s obligations under tts ieases are secured by the lessor’s vtie to the leased assets

The Company also has certaini leases of buiiding and furniture and fittngs with lease ternis of 12 months or less The Company appiies the ‘short-term lease” and ‘lease of low-value assets
recognition exemptions for these leases

Particnlars of Right-of-use assets Building Vehicle furniture and fittings ‘Yotal

As at March 31, 2020 — 3746 19.99 0.18 48.63
Additions - - = -
Depreciation expensc (17.56; {1 63} (0.18) {19.40)
Disposals i (934 - (9.34)
As at March 31,2021 19.90 .01 o5 19.91
Additions - - - -
Deprec:ation expensc (17.04) (0ul) - {17.0%)
As at March 3i. 2022 2.86 - - 2.86

Set out below are the carrying amouits of lease fiabulitics (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the period

Particulars As at March 31,2022 As at March 31, 2021
As at April 01 22.50 49.98
Additons - -
Accretion of interest 1.23 344
Payments [Total cash outflows] (19.58) (3092)
As at Maret 31 415 22.50
Current ! 4.15 19.11
Non-current - 3.38

The maturity analysis o1 lease iiabilities arc disclosed in Note 37 (Financial risk maragernent objectives and poicies). The zffective intcrest rate for lease habilities is §.84%, with maturity

between 2021-2023

The following are the amounts seccgnised 1m protit or loss:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2622

As at March 31,2021

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on fease liabihnies
Expense relating io short-term leases (included 1.3 othe: expenses)

Total amount recognised in pryiit ot loss

17.05
1.23
369
ny7

1940

344
lo.61
39.45
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Note

Particulars

As at As at
31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021

10

Other financial assets

Non-current (At amortised Cost)

(Considered good. Unsecured unless stated othenvise)
Rental deposits

Other deposits

Other financial assets

Current (At amortised cost)

(Considered good. Unsecured unless stated otherwise)
Interest accrued

Rental deposits

Unbilled Revenue

Other assets

Non-current

(Considered good, Unsecured unless stated otherwise)
Prepaid Expenses

Other assets

Current Asset

(Considered good. Unsecured unless stated otherwise)
Prepaid expenses (refer note A below)

Other advances

Balance with government authorities

Advances for supply of goods

Advance recoverable in cash or kind

Note A.

23.30 17.12
0.09 0.09
23.39 17.21
27.94 10.13
3.6l 32.98
822.08 1,226.40
881.63 1,269.51
3.57 4.07
3.57 4.07
10.21 5.70
0.05 0.05
0.18 0.05
18.83 16.17
16.21 7.91
45.48 29.88

Includes expenditure incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility in excess of related obligation till year-end, Also refer note 28A.

Deferred tax asset (Net)
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for litigations

Expenditure covered by section 43B of Income tax Act,1961

Excess of depreciation / amortisation on fixed assets under income tax law over the depreciation /

amortisation provided in accounts
Other disallowances under Income-tax Act, 1961

Income tax asset (Net)
Advance income tax (net of provision)

96.95 82.95
9.76 7.13
102.57 97.51
9.81 10.62
18.47 13.93
237.56 212,14
130.99 130.99
130.99 130.99

W\
g
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Note

Particulars

As at
31-Mar-2022

As at
31-Mar-2021

11

12

Trade Receivables (At Amortised Cost)
Trade receivables
Trade receivable from related parties (Note 36)

Security details
Unsecured, considered good
Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Trade receivables ageing schedule

Trade Receivables (At Amortised Cost)

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good
- Not due

- Less than 6 months

- 6 months - | year

- -2 years

- 2-3 years

- More than 3 years

(if) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
- Not due

- Less than 6 months

- 6 months - | yea:

- 1-2 vears

- 2-3 years

- More than 3 years

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

- On current accounts
Cash in hand

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Noa-current)
- In deposit accounts (original maturity more than 12 months)

For the purpose of statement of cashflows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

On current accounts
Cash in hand

This space has been intentionally Ieft blank

1,495.48 1,145.61
1.18 -
1,496.66 1,145.61
1,496.66 1,145.61
74.81 55.02
1,571.47 1,200.63
(74.81) (55.02)
(74.81) (55.02)
1,496.66 1,145.61
69.41 116.16
1.416.95 1,023.63
9.24 5.73
0.92 0.08
0.14 -
1,496.66 1.145.61
33,99 26 64
16.36 2544
23.22 2,95
1.24 -
74.81 55.02
12.14 61.62
0.07 0.05
12.21 61.67
1.759.16 501.85
1,759.16 501.85
12.14 61.62
007 0.05
12.21 61.67

=
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13 Share capiial

Particulsrs et AERE
: h Marcch 31,2022 March 31,2621
Authorised
30,000 (March 31. 2021: 31,000 equily shares of Rs 100 each 30.00 J0.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up.
24,845 (March 31, 2021, 28,845) equity shares of Rs 109 each fuily paid up 24.85 28 85
a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the veporting veai:
) As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars >
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 28,845 28.85 28,345 28.85
Add: Shares 1ssued dunng the year - - - -
Less' Buyback oi equity shares (refer note below) {4.000) (0.40) - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 24,845 28.45 28,845 25.85

Note:

The Board of Directors ai its meeting held on December 18, 2021, approveo a proposai to buy-back upto 4,000 equity shares of the Company for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 441 40 lakhs,
being 13.87% of the total paid up equity siare capital at Rs. 11,035 per equity share. The sharehoides approved the same on Deceraber 22, 2021, by way of a special resoiution. The Company bought
back 4.000 equity shares out of the shares that were tendered by eligible sharehclders and extingrished the equity shares on December 29, 2021. Capital redemption reserve was created to the extent of’
share capital extinguished (Rs. 4 1akhs) The cotrespending tax on buy-back ¢f Rs 101.9G Lakhs were otiset from retained earnings

b) Terms / rights atiached to equity shares
[he Company has only one class of equity shares naving a par value of Rs.1C0 per share. Each holder of equity shares is cntitled to one vote per share. The Company declares dividend in Indian
Rupees The fiaal drvidend proposed by the Buard o7 Litrectors is subject to the approvai of the shareholders in the ensuing Annua! General Meeting,

In the event of liquidaticr of the Conpany, the holders of equity shares will be en‘itied io reczive remaining assets of the Comparny, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will
be in proportion to the namber of equity shares reid by the shareholders.

) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the peried of five yeurs immediately preceding the reporting date:

Particuiars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Equity shares ailotied as fully paid bonus shares by
capitalization of securities prenium
Fquity shares bought back by ihe compan: - . N - -

d) Detaiis of shareholaers fwldutg more thar §% shares in ihe compaay:

NanresofiSanchioldon As at Murch 31,2022 As at March 31, 2021 !

R No. of shares held ! % of holding No. of shares heid % of holding

Equity shares I
Uipdawer Services Private Lunetad 16,3283 76.00% 21.923 76.00%
K.Krishna Kumar - 0.00%, 5,427 1381%
Latha Krishna Kumar 2 24.00% 1495 5.1%%
Total 24.845 100.00%% 28.845 100.00%

As per 1 :cords of the company. wcluding 1ts register of sharcholders/ members and other declarations received rrom shareholders regarding beneficial interest. the above shareholding represents both
iega! and beneficial owaeiships or shares

2) Shares held by holding company and / or their subsidiaries - ussociates:
Particulars As at As at
Maren 31, 20227 March 31,2021

Updater Services Privare Limited, the holding company
18,883 equity shares of Rs 100 each (March 31, 2022: 21,923 shares) 18.88 2192

) Shareholding of promaoter:

As at March 31,2022 As at Mavch 31, 2021
5 " T "
Nx H t % ch dur %o chs
Aiei promater No. of shares lield | % of toial shave 7o change QNG | o ofshares heid | % of total share | L MRS
the year during the year
Equity shares
. Krishna Kuniar - w =100 00% 5,427 18.81% 0.00%
i.atha Krishna Kumar 3.962 24.00% 228.80% 1,493 S 8% 0.00%
Total 5,967 24.00% 6.922 24.00%
5 5
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Note Parnculars

As at As at
31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021

14 Other equity

Retained eamings 2474.00 1.406.27
General reserve 265.97 265.97
Capital redemption reserve 4.00 -
Securities premium - - - 96.13
2,743.97 1,768.37

Nature and purpose of other reserves

ii} General Reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage in
accordance with applicable regulations. The purpuse of these fransfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year. ther: the 1otai dividend distribution is less than the rotal disiributable results for that
year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily wanefer a specified percentage of the net profit to
general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred to the generai reserve can Le utilised only in accordance with
the specific requirements of Comganies Act. 2013,

(i) Securities Fremium
Securities premium reserve is used to racord the prenium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for Emited purposes such as
issuance of bomius shares in accoidance with the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013,

(iii) Capital redemption reserve .

As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securitivs
premium A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transterred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilised in
accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(iv) Retained ecarnings

The amount can be distributed by the Company as dividends tc its equity shareholders is determined based on the financial statements of the
Company and also considering the requirements of tie Companies Act. 2013. Thus. the amounts rzported above may not be disiributable in
entirety.

Provisions

Non-corrent

Provision for gratuity (refer note 35) | 168 56 l61.64

Provision for Leave Bencfits . 87.97 61.81
256.53 22345

Current

Provision for gratusty (vefer note 33 74.52 57.05
Provision for Leave Bencfiis 54.56 35.97
.. _ 12868 104.02
Rorrowings (At Amertised Cost)
Cash credit from banks (secared) 108.78 -
108.78 -

Curreat borrowinigs reler o overdrafl facility availea from HIDFC and Ketak bank at an interest rate ranging from 8.60% to 16.10% (March
2921 7 i.15%). The overdraft facility limits to INR 200.50 lakhs and.the same 1s secured by lien on fixed deposits o' INR 155 Lakhs.
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3 < As at As at
i Pl 31-Mar-2022__ 31-Mar-2021
18 Trade payables (At Amortised Cost)
Trade Payables

Dues to Micro. Small & Medium Enterprises 2.6l 0.45
Dues to other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 336.21 267.19
Dues to related parties (refer note 33) 4.85 0.68

343.67 268.32

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-60-days term. For terms and conditions with related parties. refer to

Note 33.

Trade payables ageing schedule
(i) Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
a) Undisputed

- Not due - -
- Less than 1 year 2.61 0.45
- 1-2 years -
- 2-3 years - =
- More than 3 years - -
2.61 0.45
(i) Related parties
a) Undisputed
- Not due 4.48 0.68
- Less than 1 year 0.37 -
- 1-2 years - -
- 2-3 years - -
- More than 3 years - -
4.85 0.68
(iii) Other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
a) Undisputed
- Not due 89.17 68.63
- Less than 1 year 24141 194.90
- 1-2 years 1.30 2.56
- 2-3 years 3.00 1.04
- More than 3 years 1.13 0.06
336.21 267.19
19 Other current financial liabilities (At Amortised Cost)
Employee benefits payable 697.42 478.19
Incentive payable - 100.00
Advance from customers 19.37 19.37
Others 9.00 9.00
725.79 606.57
20 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues and related liabilities 119.90 118.88
Provision against PF order (refer note below) 3877 28.31
158.67 147.19

Note

21

The Company received an order from the High Court (against the appeal made by the PF department) directing the Company to pay PF on
certain allowances o be considered for PF computation for the salary paid for the period FY 2007-12 . Based on the High court order and in
compliance with Supreme Court judgement in 2019, the Company has created provision amounting for INR 28.31 Lakhs (March 31, 2021: INR
28.31 lakhs). Further, the Company has also accrued for interest during the year amounting to INR 10.46 lakhs (March 31. 2021: Nil)

Liabilities for current tax (net)
Liabilities for current tax (net) 138.44

138.44

249.79
249.79

_
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherivise stated)

Year ended

Year ended

Note Particul:
ofe. Tarticutars 31-Mar-2022  31-Mar-2021
22 Revenue from operations
Sale of services 7,754 .54 5.714.03
,754.54 5,714.03
Gther disclosures
Disaggregated revenue information
Sale of Mailroom inanagement services 1,666.13 1,868.42
Sale of Courier services 5875.11 3.692. 34
Others 213 30 153.27
7,754.54 5,714.03
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 5.875.11 3,092.34
Services transierred over time 1,876.43 2.021.69
Total revenue from contracts with customers 7,754.54 5,714.03
Contract Balances
Contract Assets - Trade Receivables 1,496.66 1.145.61
Contract Assets - Unbilled Revenue 822.08 1,226.40
23 Other income
Other non-cperating income 4.82 3.49
4.82 3.49
24  Finance iucome
[nterest income - Bank deposits 42.76 16.73
Interest rncome - Others 1.49 2.70
44.25 19.43
25 Employee benefit expenscs
Salaries and wages 2012 23 2.035.60
Contribution to provident and other fund 170.08 167.83
Gratuity expense (refer note 33) 3R8.80 38.17
Statf welfare expenses 24.49 10 63
2,345.60 2,252.23
26  Finance costs
Other borrowing costs 2,79 5.44
{nterest on lease liabilities 1.23 3.44
4.02 8.88
27  Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment {Refer Note 3) 13.06 9.94
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer Note 3A) 291 1.27
Depreciation of Rigit-of-use assets (Refer note 4) 17.05 19.40
33.02 30.61

\//’ﬂ(
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Year ¢nded
31-Mar-2022

Note  Particulars

Year ended
31-Mar-2021

28  Other expenses

Communication expenscs 3.30 483
Clearing und freight forwarding charges 491 343
CSR {refer note A below) 11.95 -
Insurance 231.07 140.97
Legal and professional fees 31.24 26,99
Postage and courier charges 2.559.05 1.639.12
Power and fuel 7.60 4.81
Printing and staiionery 164.83 74.9i
Paymen o auditor {Refer note B below) 8.00 4.50
Rates and taxes 47.98 38.i5
Rent 63.25 45.06
Zepairs and maintenance - others 16.40 9.65
Travelling and conveyance 107.13 4773
Prov.sion for Bad and Doubttul debts 19.79 27.36
Miscellaneous expenses 77.54 32.16
3,350.04 2,099.67
A Details of CSR ¢xpenditare:
a) Gross amount required te be spent by the Company dutir.g the y=ar 11.95 -
b) Amount approvad by the Board to be spent duiing the year 13.21 -
¢) Amount spent during the year (In cashj
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset -
(1) On purposes other than (i) above ) 13.21 -
d) Detaile related to spent / unspent obligations:
(1 Onliers 13.21 -
(1) Unspent amount i r<:alion 16:
- (ngoing projece - -
- Otiwet than ongoing sroject -
e) Shorital! at the end or the year &
) Reasor for srorttall NA NA
£) Natuie of CSR activities undertaken by e company Promotion of heaith and education:
g) Deiails of related party ransactions in relation to CSR expendiure NA NA

h) Details of excess amount spent by the compaiy:

The Company has an excess CSR spent of INR .27 lakhs for it proposes to offset against tutire cbligations and has recognized

the suame «s an asset in the balance sheet:
Opening Bulance
Amount required to be speii dusing the year
Amount spent during the ycar
Closing Balance

B. Payment o auditors:
As auditors :
Audit fee

In other capacity :
Reimbursement of expenses

11.95

153.21 -
i26 -
8.45 4.50
3.0 4.50




Avon Soiutions & Legistics Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemeats for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
(All amounis are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless stheryvise stated)

Year ended Year ended

Note Particulars ;
31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
29  Earnings per equity share
Basic EPS amounts are caleaiated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity iwlders of the Compaty by the weighted
average numuer of Equiy shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS amounts are zalculated by dividing the profit attributable o eauity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of Eguiiy sharez outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that woulo be 1ssued on
conversion of a1l the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
The tollowing retlects the profit and share data used in the basic anc diluted EPS computations:
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Profit after tax 1,515.42 1.003.19
Weightea average number of equity shares
- Basic & Diluted 27,716 28.845
Zarning per share of Rs [0 each
- Basic & Diluted 5,467.62 3.477.87
3¢ Income Tax Expense
The majo1 components of income tax expense [ar the year ended March 31, 2022 and Marcn 31, 2021
Profit and Loss Section
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 557.91 383.19
Tax related to earlier years 22.85 -
Deferred tax. ;
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differens s (25.25) (40.82)
Total Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or foss S55.51 342.37
Gther Coiapreliensive income (OCI) Section
Deteried tax related 1o items recoguised in OCH durniag in the poriod:
Re-measurement gains and (iosscs) on detinzd benefit obligat:ons (neg) 0.17 236>
6.17 23.65

Income tax chavgei o OCi

Reconciliztion of tax expense and the secounting profit maltivlicd by india’s domesii¢ tax rate for Marck 31, 2022 and

Macch 31,2021

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the thcoretical amount that would arise using the standard rate of

corporation tax in india for the Company as follows:

Accounting Profit before income tax 2,070.63 1,345.56
Enacted tax rate in Indiz 253.17% 25.17%
Profit before income tax muitiplied by enacted tax raie 321.21 338.65
Effects ot:

[nterest on 1ncome tax 8.59 689
Tax related to earlier vears 22 8% -
Contribution to CSR LT

Effect of change in substaniively enacted tax rates on deferred tax - {(4.09)
Others (0.46) 0,82
Net effeetive income tax 553.51 342.37

Year Ended
31-Mar-2022

Year Ended
31-Mar-2021
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31

32

33

34

Commitments and Contingencies

There are no open commitments for the Company or contingent liabilities for the Company as at March 31. 2022 or in the previous years thereon.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in mailroom management and associated services and the operation primarily caters to the domestic market. The Managing Director of’
the company has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM) evaluates the company's performance. allocate resources based on the
analysis of the various performance indicator of the company as a single unit. Therefore. there is no reportable seginent for the company as per the requirement
of Ind-AS 108 "Operating Segments". The Company's operations are only in one geographical segment, since its entire income is derived from sales made in
India.

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year
ended March 31, 2022 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of infonnation available
with the Company: ’

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Particulars

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 2.61 0.45
Interest due on above 0.01 -
(b) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year 2.61 -
(c) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) - -
(d) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act. for payments already made - -
(e) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act 0.01 -

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders. The primary objective of the company's capital management is to maximise the sharcholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure. the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to sharcholders or issue new shares.
The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The company includes within net debt, interest
bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

Particul As at As at
arnewtars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021

Debt

- Borrowings 108.78 -
- Lease Liabilities 4.15 22.49
Less: cash and cash equivalents & Other bank balance (12.21) (61.67)
Net debt 100.72 (39.18)
Total equity 2,768.82 1,797.22
Capital and net debt 2,869.54 1,758.04
Gearing ratio 4% 2%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call for loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current
year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
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35 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits":

(i) Defined contribution plan:

The Company's provident fund are the defined coniributicn plan. Ar amount of Rs. 13541 lakhs being contribution made 10 recognised provident fund is
recognised as expense for the year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, Z027: Ra. 129 33 lakhs) and included under Employee benefit expense {Note 25) in the
Statement of Profit and loss. ’

(ii) Defined benefit plans: .

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment ot Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, every
employee who has completed 4 years and 240 days of service are eligible for gratvity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn) for each completed year of
service. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retivemont.

A. The amounts recognised in Balance Sheet are as follows:

Gratuity plan

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A) Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 253.18 240.83
Pait value of plan assets 10.10 12.14
Amount to be recognised as hability or (asset) 243.08 228.69
B) Amounts reflected in the Balance Sheet
Liabilities 243.08 228.69
Assets - -
Net Liability / (asset) 243.08 228.69
Current 74.52 67.05
Non - Current 168.56 161.64
B. The amounts recognised in the Stat ¢ of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Gratuity plan
Particulars Year ended | Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Service cost :

Current service cost Co 2536 2593

Past service cost and loss/ (gain} on cuntailments and settfcinent - -
Ner interest cost :

Interest Expense on Defined Benefit Obligation 13.94 12.81

Interest income on Plan Assets (0.70) (0.57)

Votal included in 'Employee Benefit Expense’ 38.80 38,17

. Remeasurement recogrized in other comp.ehensive inconie

Gratuity plan
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Components of actuarial gain/iosszs on ubligations due to change in financial assumptions / demographic assumption

. . . 1 (94.21)
experience adjustments 040

Return on plan assets 0.29 0.23
Total 0.69 (93.98)

D. The changes in the present value of defined beneiit cbiigaticn representiag recuaciliation of vpening and closing balances thercef are as follows:

Gratuity plan

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Opening defined benefit obligation 240.83 242.52

Current service cost : 25.56 2593

Interest cost 13.94 12.81
Actuarial losses/(gains) due to change in financial assumptions / demozrapiic assumption / experierce adjustments

010 94.214

Past Service Cost i . - -

Benefit Paid (27.35) (134.64)

Closing balance of the present value of defined benefii obligation _ _ 253.18 240.83
]

~
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35 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits": (continued;

E. Recoaciliation of Net Liabilisy / (Asset)

Grataity plan 7]

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31. 2021
Net Liability / ( Asset) at the beginuing ot the period 228.70 231.70
Defined Berefit cost included in the Profit/ Loss 38.80 33.17
Defined Benefit cost included in Othe: Comprelensive Tncotne 0.69 93.98
Benefit Paid (27.55) (135.16)
Net Liability / (Asset) ot the end of the period 240.64 228.7

F. Principal actuarial assamptions 14 the Balaace Sheet date:

Gratuity plan

Particulars

Attrition rate
Retiremestt age

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2921
Discount rate 6.19% 5.79%
Saiary growth rate 7 3% 8.92%

31.33% at ali ages  [37.39%6 at all ages

38.00 58.00

Maturity tatles

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14;
Ultimate Table

G. Quaniitative sensitivity aaadysi: for sigaificant assumpticas:

As at
Mavch 31, 2022
Parviculars e Change Obligation
Discount rate +0.5% 230 40
-0.5% 236,035
Salary growth rate ' +1.0% 258.90
B -1.0% 247.76
Attrifion +5.0% 248.5%
. . -3.0% 258.60
o Asat
March 31, 2021
Particulars Change Obligation
Discomnlt rute 8% 258.19
I -0.5% 243,54
Salary growth vate ’ +1.0% 24613
-1.0% 235.73
Attrition T +5.0% 23416
-5.0% 249.06

H. Expected cashtlows based on past service liability

Gratuity plan

Particulars As it As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Year 1 74 85
Year 2 53.36
Year 3 43.40
Year 4 32.50
Year 5 24.81
Next § years 07.29

I. The major categorics vf plan assets of tie fair valee of the totsl plarcasses:

Gratuity plan

Particulars

As at As at
Niarch 37,2022 March 31, 2621

Investment Details
Others

10.10 12.14

Chennai
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36 Related party transactions

a) Names of related parties and natere of reladonship are as follows:

Holding company Updater Services Private Limited

>

Mr. P.D.
Mr. Raghunandana T (Director)

Mr. Jayaramaa LB (Direcior)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) ajan (Managing Director)

Avon Mobilitv Solutions Private Limited
Updater Services (U!DS) Foundation

Entities under commeon control

Zappy Home Solutions Private Limited
Stanworth Management Private Limited
Global Flight Handiing Services Private Lir

Subsidiaries of Holding company

Integrated Technical Stafﬁng and Solutiens

Tangy Supples and Solutions Private Lunited

Fusion Feods & Catéring Services Private Limited
Matrix Business Services India Private Limited
Wasnioom Hygiene Concept Private Limited

nited

Private Limited

Related party transaciions

Particalars Year cndef! Year ended
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Sale of services
Updater Scrvices Privaie Limited 9.00 0.03
Tangy Supplics 2nd Sclutions Private Lunited - 0.47
Washroom Hygiene Cencent Privaie tamited 8.16 0.08
Matnix Business Senvices Indis Provate Limited 0.00 -
Purchase of Material
Tangy Supplies and Solutions Privar: Limated - 0.2¢
Pucchase ef Fixed assets .
Washvoom Hygicne Concept Privaré Linited -
Tuizy Supplies auc Solutions Privaie Limited -
Other Exponses
} 35.08
€ N 0.36
Maunagerial remuneraton ]
7175 30.86

Mr. DD Rajaz

Balances ortsianding as ut vea/period enw:

45 at March 31,

As at March 31,
2024

Particulars
“ N 2622
Trade Payable
Marrix Basiness Services ‘ndia Prisae wimited 0.37
Updater Services Private Limited +.48
Trade reccivable
Washroown Hyziene Concept Private Litatted 1.18
Updater Servizes Privaie Limited 0.50
Managerial remuneratiou Payable
’ 2.35

M. P.D.Rajan

The breakup o* compensation o kev managenal personnel is rollows:”

Shert term benefits
Pag
Other lony terny benefits™

employment benetits®

Year caded 1 Year ended
Consideration of hey nanagerent yersonael I 21-03-2022 i___31~03—2021
d : iadd 39.86

wrovicions cade for gratuity and fezv e benefits, as these are dever

*The remuneraticn to the key manageriin perseinel does not raclude i

basis for the company as a wiiole.

‘it related pueriies:
part:” are made or: tertas cquialent 1o thosc thar prevail in arm’s fength transaciions. Ouistanding

Terms and conditions of arausactions
The sales 10 and purchases fion rz
end are unsecured and interest free ar d settlement oocws in cash. For
elatiag to amounis owerd by related partizs (Mureh 3., 202
rket inwn'ch the re'nled raity oo

receivables
finaneiat posuion of tie related puny mad the mw

miried on M actuarial

balances a1 the year-

-~

ar ended March 31, 2022, the sompary Fas not recorded any lupaitment of
C INR Nil). This assessment is underiaker. cach financial yzar through examining the
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37 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

38

39

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues. expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions -concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

* B

a) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment leave encashment benefit and the present value ofthe gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to.change 1is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the
interest rate of government bonds ‘where remaining maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality table in India. The mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Fair values
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does
not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that eventually be received or settled.

Fair value hierarchy
There have been no transfers between the levels during the year/period.

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities:

Carrying Values Fair Values
Particulars Fair Value As at As at M;ti;:;h As at
Hierarchy March 31,2022  March 31, 2021 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables Level -3 1,496.66 1.145.61 1,496.66 1,145.61
Cash and cash equivalents Level - | 1221 61.67 12.21 61.67
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents Level - | 1,759.16 501.85 1.759.16 501.85
Other financial assets - Non current Level -3 2339 17.21 23.39 1721
Other financial assets - Current Level -3 881.63 1,269.51 881.63 1,269:51

4,173.05 2,995.85 4,173.05 2,995.85
Financial Liabilities
‘Trade Payables Level -3 343.67 268.32 343.67 268.32
Borrowing Level -2 108.78 - 108.78 -
Lease Liabilities - Non Current Level - 3 - 3.38 - 3.38
Lease Liabilities - Current Level -3 4.15 19.11 4.15 19.11
Other financial liabilities Level -3 725.79 606.57 725.79 606.57

1,182.39 897.38 1,182.39 897.38

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, other current financial assets, short term borrowings, trade payables and other
current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Notes
Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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40 Financial risk management ol;jectives and policies
The Company's principal financial liabilities is borrowings, trade payables and employec benefit payable. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise
finance for the Company's operations. The Company has various financial assets such as loan, trade and other receivables, cash and short-term deposits. which arise
directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s semor management oversces the management of these risks The Company’s
primary risk management focus is to minimize potemial adverse effects of liquidity and credit risk on its financial performance. The Company’s risk management
assessment and policies and processes are eswablished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company. to set appropriate risk limits and controls. and to
monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk asscssmem and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities. The following disclosures summarises the company's exposure to financial risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financral loss Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of dstertoration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing
credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis i whora the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The Company
is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade rec :ivables) and loans receivables.

Trade and other receivables

In cases of customers where credit 1s allowed, the average credit pericd on such sale of goods ranges from 1 day to 90 days. The customer credit risk is managed by
the Company's established policy, procedures and control refating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on the individual
credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment and outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

Ind AS requires an entity to recognise in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date to the amount that is required to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109. The Company assesses at each date of statements of financial position whether a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an
amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit rish on the financial asset has increasea sigaificantly since initial recognition,

‘The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a age wise provision matrix which is
prepared considering the histerical data for collection of receivables.

Exposure to credit risk.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maxinunm credn expesure. The maximum exposure to credit risk is Rs. 1,496.66 Lakhs and 1.145.61 Lakhs as
of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively. beirg the totcl of the carrying amount of balances with trade receivables.

Interest rate rish
Interest rate risk is the rick that the fair value or future cash fiows of the Company’s financial instruments wviil fluctuate because of changes m market interest rate.

affected, with all othier

The following table demosstrates the sensitivity to a veascaably possible change in interest rates on that porticn of loans and borrowi
variubles held constant. the Company’s profit before tax is affzcied twsush the impact on floating rats borrowings, as follows:

March 31,2022) March 31, 2021

Effect on profit before tax
Increase in rate by 2% 0.06 0.11
Decrease in rate by 2% e (1.06) (0.11)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that ihe Company will not be able io meet sts financial cbligations as they become due. The objective of liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available to rieet its fabilites when due, under both noymal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o the Company's reputation. Ttiz Company monitors i sisk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis. The Company s objective
is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and {lexibility through the use of bank overdralts.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities o £ fina 1zial liabili;ies based on Contractual undiscounted paymients:

: More fis
= More than 12 s
Particulars Less than 12 Moaths Total

wmoyths

As at March 31, 2022

Borrowings 10878 - - i08./8
Other Financial Liabilities 725.79 - 723.79
Trade Payables 34267 - 42
Lease Liabilities % 427 3 - g0
i,182.51 e 1,182,
As at March 21, 2021
Other Finanzial Liabilitie 506,57 - 606.57
Trade Payables 2638.22 - 268.32
Lease Liabilities 20.34 3.42 23.76
895.23 342 §98.65




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for tie year ended March 2, 2022
(Al amoumts are in lakns of Indian Rupees urless otherwize stat»d)

41 Code on Wages, 2019 and Code o Social Szcnrity 2020
Parliainent has approved the Code on Wages, 2019 and the Code on 30¢
towards certain cmplovee venefits. The government bos released drafi n

Secartiy’

which govern, and are likely 1o tmpact, the conuibutions by the Company
s fur those Codes and has mvited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active
consideration by the concerned Ministry. The effective dats of these Cedes have not yet veen rotified and the Cempany wili assess the impact of these codes as and
when they becoms effective and wil! provide for the uppropriate impact in jts finas
rules to deternnne tne financial impact are nubhshed. '

statersems i the period in which, the Cede becomes effective and the related

42 Ratio Analysis and iis elements

Ratio Numerator . I)enummatm'” | Ao ar March 31, | As at March 31, | % variance Reason for
2002 2021 Variance
ay Current ratio Current Assets : Churrent Liavifities 1.51 1.80 -16%
merease in
! borrowings availed
b) Debt-Equity 1ativ 2 Vol Debt Equity J 4.08% }.25% 226%]|during the vear
t
Frofit have
Carnings available. tov debt - improved due to
¢) Debt service coverage tan service Debt service 107.54 44.62 14 1% |increase in business
d) Return on equdy ratic Net profit Average total equity 66.36% 70.10%
T
¢} Trade receivables turpes et tabo | Sales Average receivable 5.87 6.18 _ -5%

Increase n revenue
dug to improvement
in business

f) New capital tuinover tatio Sales *Notking capital 9.37 514 82%|scenario
) Net profit ratic Net prolit Sules 19.24% 16.33% 20%

. Earning before imerest and
h) Return on capital emploved txes i Canial emipioyed 72.00% 74.43% -3%

43 Other Statutory Information

(1) The Conpary do not have 1y 2enami proparty, whcis .y prosueding hus e inidated or pending against de Company for holding any Benani properry
3 ) I .y g g ag pan & )
iy The Compuny do ot have any tragsactions “aith companies swack off.

(iii) The Compary do ot have any charges ot satissaction which is v L © Le regisered with ROC beyond the periud.
{iv) The Comnany have not fras

dusiteg the period

»d or nivgsted i Crypeo cusvency o Yirtuai Cutrenc v

) The Company
the intermediar,

have ot udvarced or loaned or invested funds to oy o-ler pe

s on matics, weluding [oreign entities (ntetmedis with the vrderstanding that

(a) directty or ivdirectly tend ot invest it olier peiseas or antites iemified in eay manner whtsocyer by or on behaif of the company (Ulniate Beneliciaries) or

{b) provide any zuaraniee, secunty o the iike to or o6 behaif of the Ulrimats Benetiviarizs
(vi) The Company have not received any fiind from ary persons or eativics, niciuding foreiga eniities (Funding Party) with the undeistanding (whether recorded in
writirg or otherv.ise) that the company shall: o ‘ " ’ Ty )

(a) directly or indivectly 12ad or inves: ir: otfier persons or cntities wentified in any tiahner whatscever by or on Lehalf of the Fumding Party {Uitunate Beneficiaries)

or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or tire hise on behalf of die Ukiiate Beneliciaries.

{vii) The Company have noi ary such transazion which is not recordzd m the books ot accounts that nas been surrendered or Cisclosed uz income during the period in
the fax assessments urder the Income Tax Act. 196} (such as, search or sunvey or any cther relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961,

44 Previous Year Figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclass:fied v/herever necessary
As mer our report of even date
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